
 

 
 
 
 

Delegated Decisions by Cabinet Member for Transport 
 
Wednesday, 25 April 2012 at 10.00 am 
County Hall, New Road, Oxford 
 
 

Items for Decision 
 
The items for decision under individual Cabinet Members’ delegated powers are listed 
overleaf, with indicative timings, and the related reports are attached.  Decisions taken 
will become effective at the end of the working day on Thursday 3 May 2012 unless 
called in by that date for review by the appropriate Scrutiny Committee. 
 
Copies of the reports are circulated (by e-mail) to all members of the County Council. 
 
These proceedings are open to the public 
 

 
 
 
 
Note:  Date of next meeting: 7 June 2012 
 
 
 
 
If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of 
these papers or special access facilities) please contact the officer 
named on the front page, but please give as much notice as possible 
before the meeting. 
 
 

 
Peter G. Clark  
County Solicitor April 2012 
 
 
Contact Officer: 

 
 
Graham Warrington 
Tel: (01865) 815321; E-Mail: 
graham.warrington@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



Page 2  
 

 

 

Items for Decision 
 

1. Declarations of Interest  

2. Questions from County Councillors  
 Any county councillor may, by giving notice to the Proper Officer by 9 am two 

working days before the meeting, ask a question on any matter in respect of the 
Cabinet Member’s delegated powers. 
 
The number of questions which may be asked by any councillor at any one meeting 
is limited to two (or one question with notice and a supplementary question at the 
meeting) and the time for questions will be limited to 30 minutes in total. As with 
questions at Council, any questions which remain unanswered at the end of this 
item will receive a written response. 
 
Questions submitted prior to the agenda being despatched are shown below and 
will be the subject of a response from the appropriate Cabinet Member or such other 
councillor or officer as is determined by the Cabinet Member, and shall not be the 
subject of further debate at this meeting. Questions received after the despatch of 
the agenda, but before the deadline, will be shown on the Schedule of Addenda 
circulated at the meeting, together with any written response which is available at 
that time.  
 

3. Petitions and Public Address  

4. Disabled Persons' Parking Places - Cherwell & West Oxfordshire 
Districts (Pages 1 - 6) 

 Forward Plan Ref: 2012/028 
Contact: Mike Ruse, Traffic Regulation Officer Tel: (01865) 815978 
 
Report by the Interim Deputy Director for Environment & Economy (Highways & 
Transport) (CMDT4). 
 
  

 

5. Proposed Agency Agreement with the Vale of White Horse 
District Council for the Maintenance and management of Bury 
Street, Abingdon (Pages 7 - 26) 

 Forward Plan Ref: 2012/042 
Contact: Katie Barrett, Strategic Manager Tel: (01865) 816564 
 
Report by the Interim Deputy Director for Environment & Economy (Highways & 
Transport) (CMDT5). 
 

 

 

 



CMDT4 
 

Division(s): Banbury Hardwick, Bicester, 
& Chipping Norton 
 
 

CABINET MEMBER FOR TRANSPORT– 25 APRIL 2012 
 

DISABLED PERSONS’ PARKING PLACES – CHERWELL & WEST 
OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICTS 

 
Report by Interim Deputy Director for Environment & Economy (Highways & 

Transport) 
 

Introduction 
 
1. This report considers the proposed provision of new Disabled Persons’ Parking 

Places (DPPPs) in Woodfield Banbury; Moor Pond Close, Bicester and Middle Row, 
Chipping Norton.  This follows the publication of the draft Oxfordshire County Council 
(Cherwell District) (Disabled Persons’ Parking Places) (Variation No.5), and 
Oxfordshire County Council (West Oxfordshire District) (Disabled Persons Parking 
Places) (Amendment No. 4) Orders 20**.    

 
Background 

 
2. During 2011, requests were made to investigate the possibility of providing DPPPs in 

Woodfield, Banbury and Moor Pond Close, Bicester. The residents in question met 
the eligibility criteria and, following site visits, plans were drawn up prior to formal 
consultation being carried out. With regard to Woodfield it was decided that as a 
DPPP already existed there this would be extended to accommodate two vehicles in 
order to make more efficient use of available space. Separately, a request was 
received in 2011 to provide a DPPP for disabled visitors to Kingdom Hall, Middle 
Row, Chipping Norton. Following further discussions a site inspection was held and 
a plan drawn up.  

 
3. This report considers the outcome of a formal consultation on the proposals. All 

other DPPP proposals advertised at the same time were unopposed and have, 
therefore, been dealt with under delegated authority to avoid unnecessary delays.  

  
Formal Consultation 

 
4. The Directorate sent a copy of the draft Amendment Order, a Statement of Reasons 

for the Order and a copy of the Public Notice appearing in the local press to formal 
Consultees on 8 February 2011. These documents, together with supporting 
documentation as required and plans of all the DPPPs were deposited for public 
inspection at County Hall, Cherwell District Council offices, Bodicote; West 
Oxfordshire District Council Town Centre Shop, Witney and Libraries at Banbury, 
Chipping Norton, and Witney. Plans of the three sites in question are available for 
inspection in the Members’ Resource Centre.  

 
5. Separately, the Directorate wrote to local residents in each area where new DPPPs 

were proposed to be sited asking for their comments. In addition public notices were 
displayed at each site and in the Oxford Times.  

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



CMDT4 
 
 
6. Comments were received in respect of all three proposed DPPPs. A synopsis of 

each comment with an officer response is set out at Annex 1.  Copies of the 
responses can be viewed in the Members’ Resource Centre.  
 

7. No statutory or formal consultees have commented.   
 
8. Only two changes to the advertised proposals are recommended in response to 

comments made during the consultation:-  
 

(a) it had been proposed to provide a DPPP in Moor Pond Close, Bicester. 
However, several residents in the vicinity commented that no parking 
problems existed there and the road was normally clear of cars. A parking 
survey corroborated this. The results are shown at Annex 2.   

 
(b) It had also been proposed to provide a DPPP in Middle Row, Chipping 

Norton. After further discussions with residents and applicants, it is 
recommended that the proposal should not proceed and a new consultation 
carried out on a revised location nearer Lower Market Place.     

 
It is recommended that the DPPP in Woodfield, Banbury proceeds as advertised.   

  
 How the Project supports LTP3 Objectives 
 
9. Introduction of new DPPPs will help in delivering accessibility by enabling disabled 

people to park near to their homes or shops and businesses or places of worship 
etc;  thus accessing a wider range of services. 

 
 Financial and Staff Implications (including Revenue) 
 
10. The cost of installing the DPPP is approximately £500 and will be met from the 

existing revenue budget provided for it.  
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
11. The Cabinet Member for Transport is RECOMMENDED:-  
 

(a) to authorise variations to the Oxfordshire County Council (Cherwell 
District) (Disabled Persons’ Parking Places) Order 2006 as amended in 
this report to extend  the existing DPPP in Woodfield, Banbury to 
accommodate two cars; and 

 
(b) not to proceed with the proposed DPPP as advertised in Middle Row, 

Chipping Norton but to carry out consultation on a revised location 
nearer Lower Market Place; and 

 
(c) not to proceed with the proposed DPPP as advertised in Moor Pond 

Close, Bicester. 
MARK KEMP 
Interim Deputy Director for Environment & Economy (Highways & Transport) 
Background papers:  Consultation documentation  
Contact Officer:  Mike Ruse, Tel 01865 815978  March 2012 

Page 2



CMDT4 
 

 
ANNEX 1 

 
Comments on the Proposed Disabled Persons’ Parking Places (DPPPs)  
 
 Commentor Comments Response Recommendation 
Enlarged DPPP at Woodfield, Banbury     
1 Resident, 

Woodfield 
They usually park 
where the bay is to be 
extended. Can any 
badge holder park in 
any DPPP? Most of 
the residents here 
have Blue Badges. 
Approves of existing 
DPPP because user 
is in a wheelchair.   

The DPPP is to be 
widened to accommodate 
another applicant and the 
extension is as near the 
applicants home as is 
practical. While any 
badge holder could park 
in it, only two applications 
including the original one 
have been received. The 
current applicant receives 
the higher rate Disability 
Living Allowance for 
mobility.  

Proceed.  

2 Resident, 
Woodfield 

Objects to the 
proposal. Doesn’t 
think the applicant 
has much difficulty 
walking and thinks 
the application is a 
device to reserve the 
nearest space to 
home. All the 
residents in the 
bungalows have Blue 
Badges.  

Applicant has a Motability 
Vehicle and only those 
receiving the higher rate 
Disability Living 
Allowance for mobility are 
eligible for these vehicles. 
A large proportion of 
residents in these 
bungalows have Blue 
Badges issued by OCC.  

As above.  

DPPP at Moor Pond Close, Bicester  
3 Resident, 

Moor Pond 
Close   

Doesn’t believe a 
parking problem 
exists. The road 
outside the 
applicant’s house is 
normally clear of cars. 
Doesn’t think this is a 
good use of public 
funds.    

Although a hard-standing 
exists, the applicant says 
it cannot be used because 
of his disability and he 
has to get his parents to 
park his car there.  
A parking survey has 
being carried out during 
the final week of March 
2012 and the results 
confirm that no parking 
problem exists and the 
applicant’s car is normally 
parked on his drive.   

Not to proceed.  

4 Resident, 
Moor Pond 
Close 

Doesn’t believe a 
parking problem 
exists. Applicant had 
another off-road car 

As above. As above 

Page 3



CMDT4 
 

space behind existing 
one but turned that 
into garden. Thinks 
applicant is 
attempting to reserve 
extra space on the 
road. Has never seen 
applicant’s parents at 
the property.  

 
DPPP at Middle Row, Chipping Norton 
5 Resident, 

Middle Row 
While a new DPPP 
may be required in 
town, doesn’t think 
the bay should be 
sited here as will 
cause difficulties for 
residents needing 
parking space. 
Residents from 
Spring Street park 
here in the day 
because displaced by 
parking restrictions in 
their street. The 
proposal would 
negate parking 
improvements caused 
by relocation of 
refuse bins. Could the 
DPPP be located in 
one of the existing car 
parks?   

Bay was requested by 
disabled users of 
Kingdom Hall and was 
planned to be outside the 
Hall. After further 
discussions with them it 
was agreed not to 
proceed with this proposal 
but have a new 
consultation on providing 
a DPPP near the Lower 
Market Place car park. 
This is near enough for 
them to use and will 
replace an advisory 
disabled space in the car 
park that had to be 
removed because of the 
slope so will provide a 
facility for all disabled 
visitors.  

Not to proceed with 
this proposal but to 
have a new 
consultation on 
providing a DPPP 
near Lower Market 
Place.  

6 Business 
owner/ 
resident in 
Middle Row 

Believes there is 
already a high 
provision of disabled 
parking spaces on the 
“pedestrian south 
side of Middle Row.” 
The organisation 
requesting the new 
bay is only open a 
few days a week and 
Middle Row is already 
heavily parked. In the 
evening by 10pm 
there are normally no 
spaces left.  

No on-street DPPPs exist 
in the area on this side of 
the A44 although there 
may well be disabled 
spaces in the 
supermarket car park. 
When parking is 
congested the disabled 
are disadvantaged most. 
As above.  

As above.  

7 Resident, 
Middle Row 

The proposal will 
erode the number of 
spaces available to 
residents. Disabled 

DPPP was requested by 
disabled people who meet 
at Kingdom Hall hence its 
location. As above.  

As above.  

Page 4



CMDT4 
 

bays should instead 
be located in the car 
parks for disabled 
visitors. Proposed 
DPPP is next to a 
building wall – would 
be difficult to open car 
door wide enough for 
access.    

8 Resident, 
Middle Row 

Why was the existing 
DPPP in Market 
Square (Lower 
Market Place) 
removed?  As people 
park on both sides of 
the road in Middle 
Row they need to 
park near to the side 
– would a disabled 
driver be able to do 
that and still get out of 
vehicle if a DPPP 
provided?  Parking is 
very congested here 
and she often has to 
park some way away. 
The users of Kingdom 
Hall only require 
parking twice a week. 
Strongly objects to 
the proposal.   

DPPP in Lower Market 
Place was only advisory 
and had to be removed on 
health and safety reasons 
because of the slope. If a 
DPPP was provided 
outside Kingdom Hall the 
disabled users of the Hall 
would need to park in 
such a way that they 
could leave and enter the 
vehicle from the road 
side. There are meetings 
at Kingdom Hall on all 
days except Mondays. As 
above.    

As above.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\9\8\AI00006897\$tjbsu0t0.doc 

Annex 2 

Parking Survey, Moor Pond Close, Bicester 

Date Time Result 

13/03/12 12.20pm Road empty - applicant parked in drive 

26/03/12 8.30am Road empty - applicant parked in drive*  

26/03/12 19.06pm I vehicle belonging to No 3 parked o/s No 3 - applicant 
parked in drive, no other vehicles on street* 

29/03/12 13.30pm Applicants car parked outside - no other vehicles parked 
here. * 

30/03/12 8.06am Road empty – applicant parked on drive* 

* Photos in Members Resource Centre and available at the Cabinet Member 
meeting  

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Divisions: Abingdon East, West and 
North 
 

 
CABINET MEMBER FOR TRANSPORT – 25 APRIL 2012 

 
PROPOSED AGENCY AGREEMENT WITH THE VALE OF WHITE 

HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL FOR THE MAINTENANCE AND 
MANAGEMENT OF BURY STREET, ABINGDON 

 
Report by the Interim Deputy Director for Environment & Economy (Highways 

&Transport) 
 

 
Introduction 

 
1. Planning permission has been granted by the Vale of White Horse District 

Council for a major refurbishment of the pedestrianised Bury Street shopping 
area in Abingdon. This is the first phase of plans to revitalise the town centre 
that will also involve the redevelopment of the shops along Broad Street and 
the Charter area including the multi-storey car park in the longer term. 
 
The Proposed Agency Agreement  
 

2. The detailed design for the refurbishment includes resurfacing Bury Street 
with York stone paving and the use of Windsor style standard lamps. Both of 
these will be more expensive to maintain than the materials and street lights 
the county council normally uses on the highway. To enable these features to 
be used while ensuring this council does not incur additional maintenance 
costs, it is proposed that the county and district councils enter into an agency 
arrangement so the district council takes on the maintenance responsibilities 
and associated liabilities for Bury Street. It is an alternative to this council 
requiring commuted sums for maintenance and is more acceptable to the 
developer and the district council.    
 

3. The draft agency agreement is at Annex 1 to this report and a plan showing 
the area that would be covered at Annex 2. Its main purpose is to cover future 
maintenance, but it also refers to some related management functions 
concerning the removal of obstructions and other non-compliances.  

   
Financial and Staff Implications 

 
4. The agency agreement will remove future financial risk from this council as it 

will not have to bear the costs of future maintenance and it will be indemnified 
for payment of compensation in the event of accident or injury as a result of 
poor maintenance. These risks will be borne by the district council. However, 
if the district council wanted to end the arrangement within 25 years, this 
council would require the highway to be returned in a safe and satisfactory 

Agenda Item 5

Page 9



CMDT5 
 

$zsipykpl.doc 

state with an appropriate commuted sum for the ‘abnormal’ maintenance 
costs for the remaining period of the 25 years. There would be a small 
reduction in staff time for inspecting and maintaining the asset; but not so 
significant as to result in staff savings.    
 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
5. The Cabinet Member for Transport is RECOMMENDED to:  

 
(a) approve the draft agency agreement with the Vale of White Horse 

District Council for the maintenance of Bury Street, Abingdon, as 
set out at Annex 1 and shown on the plan at Annex 2 to this 
report;    
 

(b) delegate authority to the Deputy Director for Environment & 
Economy (Highways and Transport) in consultation with the 
Cabinet Member for Transport to deal with any changes from the 
above relating to the extent (but limited to Bury Street) or terms of 
the agreement. 

 
 
Mark Kemp 
Interim Deputy Director for Environment & Economy (Highways and Transport) 
 
Background papers: none 
   
Contact Officer: Katie Barrett tel no 01865 816564   
March 2012 
 
 

Page 10



CMDT5 
 

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\1\1\ai00007118\$nuqrefex.doc 

Annex 1 
 
 
 

DATED                                                   200 
 

 
 

THE OXFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 
 

- and - 
 

 
 

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

 Draft Agreement  
under Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972  
and Section 19 of the Local Government Act 2000 

relating to maintenance and management of Bury Street, Abingdon 
 

_______________________________ 
 
 
Additional Notes  
 
1.  Plan of Bury Street to be attached. 
2.  Existing policies and protocols to be attached.  
 
 
42629 
 
P G Clark 
County Solicitor 
Oxfordshire County Council 
County Hall 
New Road 
Oxford  OX1 1ND 
 

Page 11



CMDT5 
 

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\1\1\ai00007118\$nuqrefex.doc 

THIS AGREEMENT is made the                                                    day of                            

Two Thousand and                    

BETWEEN:- 

(1) THE OXFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL (“the County Council”) 

(2)    VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL (“the District Council”)  

 

1. Interpretation 

In this Agreement:- 

1.1 “the1980 Act” means the Highways Act 1980  

1.2 “Bury Street” means the highway shown outlined in blue on the plan attached 

to this Agreement (and any part of it) and includes all highway drainage and 

street lighting located at Bury Street 

1.3 “the Commencement Date” means the date of issue of the Certificate of 

Completion (as defined in the Section 278 Agreement) 

1.4 “the County Council” means the Oxfordshire County Council whose principal 

office is at County Hall  New Road  Oxford  OX1 1ND and any successor to its 

statutory functions as highway authority and any duly appointed employee or 

agent of the County Council or such successor 

1.5 “Delegated Functions (Maintenance)” means the functions described in 

Schedule 1 to this Agreement in respect of Bury Street 

1.6 “Delegated Functions (Management)” means the functions described in 

Schedule 2 to this Agreement in respect of Bury Street 

1.7 “the District Council” means Vale of White Horse District Council whose office 

is at Abbey House Abbey Close Abingdon Oxfordshire OX14 3JE 

Page 12



CMDT5 
 

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\1\1\ai00007118\$nuqrefex.doc 

1.8 “including” means including without limitation or prejudice to the generality of 

any preceding description defining term phrase or word(s) and ‘include’ shall 

be construed accordingly 

1.9 “Index Linked” means adjusted according to any increase occurring between 

April 2012 and the date of payment to the Council in a composite index 

comprised of the following indices of the Monthly Bulletin of Indices Prices 

Adjustment Formulae for Construction Contracts (1990 Series) published on 

behalf of the Department of Business, Innovation and Skills weighted in the 

proportions below set out against each such index namely:-   

Index 1     Labour & Supervision 25% 

Index 2     Plant & Road Vehicles 25% 

Index 3     Aggregates 30% 

Index 9     Coated Macadam & Bituminous Products 20% 

or if at any time for any reason it becomes impracticable to compile the said 

composite index then an index compiled in such other manner as may be 

agreed in writing by the County Council and the District Council   

1.10 “Section 278 Agreement” means an agreement pursuant to inter alia Section 

278 of the 1980 Act dated [                ] 2012 and made between the County 

Council (1) and the District Council (2) 

1.11 Any reference to an enactment includes any amendment to or modification of 

it and the version of it for the time being in force shall apply 

1.12 Headings in this Agreement will be for convenience only and shall not be 

taken into account in its construction and interpretation 

1.13 Reference to clauses sub-clauses and schedules are references to clauses 

sub-clauses and schedules in this Agreement 

1.14 Where the context so requires:- 

Page 13



CMDT5 
 

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\1\1\ai00007118\$nuqrefex.doc 

1.14.1 the singular includes the plural and vice versa 

1.14.2 the masculine includes the feminine and vice versa 

1.14.3 persons includes bodies corporate associations and partnerships and 

vice versa 

1.15 Words denoting an obligation on a party to do any act matter or thing include 

an obligation to procure that this is done and words placing a party under 

restriction include an obligation not to cause permit or allow infringement of 

this restriction 

2. Preliminary 

2.1 For the purposes of the 1980 Act the County Council is the highway authority 

for Bury Street and for the purposes of the New Roads and Street Works Act 

1991 the County Council is the street authority for Bury Street 

2.2 The District Council is an urban authority for purposes of Section 161 of the 

Public Health Act 1875 – please can this be confirmed by the Vale               

2.3 Pursuant to Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972 and Section 19 of 

the Local Government Act 2000 the County Council has resolved to delegate 

to the District Council the power to discharge the Delegated Functions 

(Maintenance) and the Delegated Functions (Management) in accordance 

with the provisions of this Agreement and the District Council  has decided to 

discharge the Delegated Functions (Maintenance) and Delegated Functions 

(Management) in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement 

2.4 This Agreement is entered into pursuant to Section 101 of the Local 

Government Act 1972 Section 19 of the Local Government Act 2000 and 

Section 98 of the 1980 Act and all other enabling powers 

 

 

Page 14



CMDT5 
 

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\1\1\ai00007118\$nuqrefex.doc 

3. Agency 

3.1 The County Council hereby delegates to the District Council the power to 

discharge the Delegated Functions (Maintenance) in accordance with the 

provisions of this Agreement and the District Council accepts the delegation of 

the Delegated Functions (Maintenance) subject to the provisions of this 

Agreement 

3.2 The County Council hereby delegates to the District Council the power to 

discharge the Delegated Functions (Management) in accordance with the 

provisions of this Agreement and the District Council accepts the delegation of 

the Delegated Functions (Management) subject to the provisions of this 

Agreement 

3.3 The District Council shall act as the agent of the County Council in the 

discharge of the Delegated Functions (Maintenance) and Delegated Functions 

(Management) 

4. Commencement and Operation 

4.1 This Agreement shall operate on and from the Commencement Date until it is 

determined as follows:- 

4.1.1 forthwith on written notice from the County Council in the case of any 

substantive breach by the District Council   

4.1.2 by the County Council giving not less than 12 months prior written 

notice to the District Council to take effect from 1 April in any year 

subject always to compliance with the notice requirements in Section 

98(5) of the 1980 Act  

4.1.3 by the District Council giving not less than 12 months prior written 

notice to the County Council to take effect from 1 April in any year 

Page 15



CMDT5 
 

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\1\1\ai00007118\$nuqrefex.doc 

subject always to compliance with the notice requirements in Section 

98(5) of the 1980 Act  

4.2 In the event of determination of this Agreement further to either clause 4.1.1 

or 4.1.3 prior to the expiry of 30 years from the Commencement Date (or in 

the event that the District Council undertake maintenance of Bury Street 

further  to Section 42 of the 1980 Act) the District Council shall pay to the 

County Council on the determination of the Agreement (or commencement of 

maintenance further to Section 42 as applicable) the sum calculated as 

follows: 

 
£ (38,947.00 x A) Index Linked 
          30 
 

Where A is the number of years from the date of termination of the Agreement 

or commencement of maintenance as applicable  to the expiry of 30 years 

from the Commencement Date rounded up to the nearest whole number 

4.3 If at any time it appears to the County Council that the District Council is 

materially in default if its obligations under this Agreement the County Council 

may take such action as appears to be reasonably necessary to remedy such 

default and may recover its reasonable costs in so doing from the District 

Council subject always to the default continuing after the County Council has 

given not less than 21 days notice (or in case of emergency such notice if any 

as is practicable) of the steps it requires to be taken to remedy the default                                

For information this is compliant with Section 98(3) of the 1980 Act 

 

4.4 Termination of this Agreement will be without prejudice to continuing liability 

for any antecedent breach and the provision of clause 8. 

Page 16



CMDT5 
 

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\1\1\ai00007118\$nuqrefex.doc 

5. Performance of Delegated Functions (Maintenance) 

5.1 The District Council will perform the Delegated Functions (Maintenance) and 

will undertake them with all due skill care and diligence in accordance with the 

provisions of this Agreement and so as to ensure compliance with the duty to 

maintain specified in Section 41 of the 1980 Act in respect of Bury Street and 

also the duty to remove snow, soil etc.,  from the highway specified in Section 

150 of the 1980 in respect of Bury Street  

5.2 The Delegated Functions (Maintenance) will be exercised with as little 

disturbance as reasonably practicable to the highway and the District Council 

will take all appropriate steps to safeguard public rights of passage on the 

highway including taking all reasonable precautions for the prevention of 

accidents arising from the exercise of the Designated Functions 

(Maintenance)  

Additional wording incorporated in order to ensure compliance with Section 

175 of the 1980 Act 

5.3 In carrying out the Delegated Functions (Maintenance) the District Council 

shall comply with the County Council’s rules, policies and guidance relevant to 

those functions which have been notified by the County Council to the District 

Council (including as to undertaking periodic inspections standards and 

associated record keeping) and the District Council will also comply with any 

reasonable direction given by the County Council in respect of or arising from 

such rules, policies and guidance 

5.4 The District Council shall comply with all relevant enactments in carrying out 

the Delegated Functions (Maintenance) and without limitation to the foregoing 

shall comply at all times in carrying out Delegated Functions (Maintenance) 

with 

Page 17



CMDT5 
 

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\1\1\ai00007118\$nuqrefex.doc 

5.4.1 Health and Safety at Work etc legislation  

5.4.2 Section 174 of the 1980 Act (precautions to be taken by a person 

executing works in a street) and  

5.4.3 Section 175A of the 1980 Act (duty to have regard to the needs of 

disabled and blind in executing works etc). 

And as further provided in clauses 5.4 and 5.5 of this Agreement 

5.5 In the performance of the Delegated Functions (Maintenance) in relation to 

street lighting at Bury Street the District Council shall 

5.5.1 secure the prior approval of the County Council in respect of any works 

being executed or expenditure to be incurred 

5.5.2 comply with any requirement of the County Council as to the manner in 

which any such works are to be carried out with any directions of the 

County Council and as to the terms of contracts to be entered into for 

the purposes of the discharge of the Delegated Functions 

(Maintenance) 

5.5.3 complete any such works to the satisfaction of the County Council 

These provisions are required in order to comply with Section 98(2) of 

the 1980 Act 

5.6 In the exercise of the Delegated Functions (Maintenance) the District Council 

shall comply with all obligations on the part of the County Council under 

Sections 80 and 83 and as applicable 84 and 85 of the New Roads and Street 

Works Act 1991 and further it shall also notify the County Council forthwith if 

apparatus is found in Bury Street and where works will affect apparatus  

5.7 All costs and expenses arising out of the exercise by the District Council                 

of  the Delegated Functions (Maintenance) shall be  defrayed by the District 

Page 18



CMDT5 
 

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\1\1\ai00007118\$nuqrefex.doc 

Council and without any expense to the County Council and for the avoidance 

of doubt this shall include payment of all energy costs for street lighting 

6. Performance of Delegated Functions (Management) 

6.1. The District Council shall from the Commencement Date perform the 

Delegated Functions (Management) and will undertake them with all due skill 

care and diligence in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement  

6.2. The Delegated Functions (Management) shall be executed with minimum of 

disturbance to the highway and the District Council will take all appropriate 

steps to safeguard public rights of passage on the highway 

6.3. In carrying out the Delegated Functions (Management) the District Council will 

comply with the County Council’s rules policies and guidance relevant to 

those functions which have been notified by the County Council to the District 

Council and the District Council will also comply with any reasonable 

directions given by the County Council in respect of  

or arising from such rules policies and guidance 

6.4. The District Council shall comply with all relevant enactments in carrying out 

the Delegated Functions and without limitation to the foregoing shall comply 

with Health & Safety at Work legislation at all times in carrying out Delegated 

Functions  

6.5. Any notice issued by the District Council in connection with the discharge of 

the Delegated Functions (Management) shall state that such functions are 

exercised by the District Council on behalf of the County Council pursuant to 

an arrangement entered into under Section 101 of the Local Government Act 

1972 and Section 19 of the Local Government Act 2000 but no such notice 

shall be invalid by reason only that this requirement is not complied with and 

Page 19



CMDT5 
 

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\1\1\ai00007118\$nuqrefex.doc 

any person acting in pursuance of any such notice shall be concerned to see 

if such requirements are observed 

6.6. The District Council shall send to the County Council a copy of any notice it 

issues in the exercise of the Delegated Functions (Management) at the same 

time as issuing such a notice  

6.7. All costs and expenses arising out of the performance of the Delegated 

Functions (Maintenance) shall be defrayed by the District Council and without 

any expense to the County Council 

7. County Council’s Constitution 

The District Council must apply the Contract Procedure Rules of the County Council 

comprised in the County Council’s constitution in respect of the letting of any 

contract for the performance of the Delegated Functions (Maintenance) or 

Delegated Functions (Management).  It is hereby noted that Rule 3.1 specifies that 

the Rules do not apply to contracts which are not for the provision of goods, 

services or works  (e.g. grants or contracts relating to land)  CPR2.5 

8. Legal Proceedings   

8.1. The District Council may take all such action including instituting legal 

proceedings (other than prosecutions for the commission of any offence) and 

defending such legal proceedings as may be necessary in connection with the 

discharge of the Delegated Functions (Maintenance) and the Delegated 

Functions (Management) but before commencing any legal proceedings the 

District Council shall consult with the County Council and  

8.1.1 the District Council may not without the prior written consent of the 

County Council institute a prosecution for the commission of any 

offence  

Page 20



CMDT5 
 

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\1\1\ai00007118\$nuqrefex.doc 

8.1.2 The District Council shall be responsible for costs and liabilities in 

relation to any legal proceedings           

8.2. Where any proceedings arise in connection with the Delegated Functions the 

County Council or the District Council (or both as the case may require) shall 

each provide to the other such evidence and other information and assistance 

as may reasonably be required for the purpose of those proceedings provided 

always for the avoidance of doubt that the obligations in this clause shall not 

apply to proceedings if the County Council and the District Council are 

opposing parties to each other in the proceedings 

8.3. For record purposes the District Council will notify the County Council of any 

claim in respect of the Delegated Functions (Maintenance) or the Delegated 

Functions (Management) within 21 days of receipt of such a claim 

9. INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE 

9.1. The District Council will indemnify the County Council in respect of all actions 

claims costs demands proceedings and liabilities which may arise from any 

act omission or neglect on the part of the District Council its agents 

contractors lessees or employees in connection with the discharge of the 

Delegated Functions (Maintenance) or the Delegated Functions 

(Management) or from any breach by the District Council of the provisions of 

this Agreement save to the extent that liability arises out of the negligence or 

default of the County Council 

9.2. Without prejudice to the generality of clause 8.1:- 

9.1.1 The District Council will indemnify the County Council against all 

actions claims costs demands proceedings and liabilities which may 

arise from the failure to maintain Bury Street or arising out of any 

Page 21



CMDT5 
 

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\1\1\ai00007118\$nuqrefex.doc 

works of maintenance to Bury Street undertaken further to the 

Delegated Functions (Maintenance) 

9.1.2 In the event that any undertaker or any other body or person (as 

defined by the New Roads and Street Works Act 1991) is eligible to 

recover any damages costs or expenses pursuant to the New Roads 

and Street Works Act 1991 as a result of or in consequence of the 

discharge of the Delegated Functions (Maintenance) or of Delegated 

Functions (Management) the District Council shall discharge such 

damages costs and expenses and shall indemnify the County 

Council against any such claims 

9.2 The District Council covenants with the County Council that it will maintain 

insurance cover with a reputable insurance company to include pubic liability 

insurance in the minimum sum of Ten Million Pounds (£10,000,000) per claim 

and employers liability insurance in the sum of Ten Million Pounds 

(£10,000,000) per claim.  The District Council will within 14 days of request 

supply evidence to the County Council that such insurance is being 

maintained by the District Council 

10 Notices 

10.1 Any notice or notification to be given to the County Council under this 

Agreement shall be sent to the Director for Environment and Economy of the 

Council, Speedwell House, Speedwell Street, Oxford OX1 1NE or to such 

other person at such address as the County Council shall direct from time to 

time 

10.2 Any notice or notification to be given to the District Council under this 

Agreement shall be sent to [                      ] or to such other person at such 

Page 22



CMDT5 
 

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\1\1\ai00007118\$nuqrefex.doc 

address as the District Council shall notify in writing to the County Council 

from time to time 

10.3 For the avoidance of doubt any notice required to be given under the New 

Roads and Street Works Act 1991 or as applicable the 1980 Act in the 

discharge of the Delegated Functions (Maintenance) or the Delegated 

Functions (Management) shall be given in the prescribed form in accordance 

with requirements of the New Roads and Street Works Act 1991 or as 

applicable the 1980 Act. 

11 Third Party Rights 

This Agreement gives no rights under the Contract (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 

but this does not affect any rights which were available apart from that Act 

12 No Waiver 

No alterations in the terms of this Agreement nor any forbearance or forgiveness on 

the part of any party in or in the extent or nature of any matter or thing concerning this 

Agreement shall in anyway release any party from liability under this Agreement 

13 No Fetter 

Nothing in this Agreement shall prejudice or affect the rights powers duties and 

obligations of the County Council or District Council  in the exercise of their respective 

functions in any capacity 

14 Variations 

Any provision of this Agreement may be varied at any time by written agreement 

between the parties such variation to be attached to this Agreement 

15 Dispute Resolution 

In the event of a dispute arising in connection with this Agreement which is not 

resolved within 14 days by the District Council and the County Council it shall:- 

Page 23



CMDT5 
 

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\1\1\ai00007118\$nuqrefex.doc 

15.1 in the first instance be referred to the respective directors of the District 

Council and  the County Council with overall responsibility for the performance 

of the Delegated Functions (Maintenance) and Delegated Functions 

(Management) 

15.2 if after a further 14 days the dispute remains outstanding it will be referred to 

the chief executives of the District Council and the County Council 

15.3 if within 21 days of such referral (or such longer period as may be agreed 

between the parties) no agreement is reached then the District Council and 

the County Council shall give serious consideration to the use of mediation  

 

IN WITNESS whereof the parties have executed this Agreement as a deed the day and 

year first above written 

 

SCHEDULE  1 

 

Delegated Functions (Maintenance) 

The maintenance of Bury Street so as to comply fully with the duties of the highway 

authority pursuant to Section 41 of the 1980 Act and Section 150 the 1980 Act subject to 

and in compliance with the provisions of this Agreement 

 

The performance of the street lighting functions of the County Council at Bury Street so 

that the street lighting is fully operational at all times whilst this Agreement is in force 

subject to and in compliance with the provisions of this Agreement 

 

 

 

Page 24



CMDT5 
 

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\1\1\ai00007118\$nuqrefex.doc 

SCHEDULE  2 

 

Delegated Functions (Management) 

The functions of the County Council pursuant to the following sections of the 1980 Act 

subject to and in compliance with the provisions of this Agreement 

 

[Section 132 – Unauthorised marks on the highways 

Section 133 – Damage to footways of street by excavations 

Section 140 – Removal of builders’ skips 

Section 143 – Power to remove structures from highways 

Section 149 – Removal of things so deposited on the highways as to be a nuisance etc  

Section 153 – Doors etc in streets not to open outwards 

Section 154 – Cutting or felling etc trees 

Section 161 – Penalties for causing certain kinds of danger or annoyance 

Section 161A – Danger or annoyance caused by fires lit otherwise than on highways 

Section 162 – Penalty for placing rope, etc across highway 

Section 168 – Building operations affecting public safety 

Section 174 – Precautions to be taken by persons executing works in streets] 

 

The functions of the County Council pursuant to the following sections of the New Roads 

and Street Works Act 1991 subject to and in compliance with the provisions of this 

Agreement 

 

Section 65 - Safety measures 

Section 66 – Avoidance of unnecessary delay or obstruction 

Section 68 – Facilities to be afforded to street authority 

Page 25



CMDT5 
 

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\1\1\ai00007118\$nuqrefex.doc 

Section 70 – Duty of undertaker to reinstate 

Section 71 – Materials Workmanship and standard of reinstatement 

Section 72 – Powers of street authority in relation to reinstatement 

Section 73 – Reinstatement affected by subsequent works 

Section 75 – Inspection fees 

 

 

 

 

 

THE COMMON SEAL of THE ) 

OXFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL ) 

was affixed in the presence of:- ) 

 

 Solicitor to the Council  

 and Designated Officer 

   

 

THE COMMON SEAL of THE ) 

VALE OF WHITE HORSE  ) 

DISTRICT COUNCIL  ) 

Was affixed in the presence of:- ) 

 

Page 26



CMDT5 
 

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\1\1\ai00007118\$nuqrefex.doc 

 

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Disabled Persons' Parking Places - Cherwell & West Oxfordshire Districts
	CMDT_APR2512R05

	5 Proposed Agency Agreement with the Vale of White Horse District Council for the Maintenance and management of Bury Street, Abingdon
	CMDT_APR2512R04


